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Boston, Ma  02205 
 
Re: FRY-6 
 
 
Dear Sir, 
 
Enclosed please find form FR Y-6 Annual Report of bank Holding Companies for the year ended 
12/31/2021 for BankFive MHC.  One original and one copy are enclosed.   
 
This filing includes the audited financial statements, the independent accountant report and management’s 
report for the year ended 12/31/2021.  The enclosed financial statements should be treated in a 
confidential manner. 
 
 
Please contact me if you have any questions regarding the enclosed reports. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
 
Anne P. Tangen 
President & CEO 
BankFive, MHC 
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FR Y-6 Report Items BankFive, MHC 
 
 
 
 
 
Report Item 1: Annual Report to Shareholder - BankFive, MHC is not registered with 
the Securities and Exchange Commission and provides no reports to shareholders.  
Enclosed is the annual audited financials as of December 31, 2021 for BankFive, MHC. 
These financial statements are to be treated confidentially. 
 
Report Item 2a: Organizational Chart - Enclosed is an organizational chart for 
BankFive, MHC and its affiliates. 
 
Report Item 2b: Domestic Branch Listing - Enclosed is the listing for branches of  
BankFive, banking subsidiary of BankFive, MHC.   
 
Report Item 3: Securities Holders - BankFive, MHC as a mutual holding company has 
no security holders that met the requirements of this report item. 
 
Report Item 4: Insiders - Enclosed is a report detailing the information for individuals 
qualifying as insiders for BankFive MHC and BankFive Corporation. 
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BankFive, MHC and Subsidiary 

 

Consolidated Balance Sheets 
December 31, 2021 and 2020 

 
 
See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements

2021 2020
Assets

Cash and due from banks 11,415$          14,411$      
Interest-bearing deposits 35,165            29,877        
          Cash and cash equivalents 46,580            44,288        

Securities available for sale 243,402       193,293      
Securities held to maturity, at cost (fair value 
    $12,218 and $8,854 in 2021 and 2020, respectively) 12,145            8,724          
Marketable equity securities 1,009              815             
Restricted stock, at cost 7,458              5,211          
Loans held for sale 48,673            37,031        
Loans, net of allowance for loan losses of $8,257
    and $7,025 in 2021 and 2020, respectively 1,032,663       886,451      
Bank-owned life insurance 21,056            20,797        
Premises and equipment, net 17,530            14,869        
Goodwill 2,203              2,203          
Accrued interest receivable 3,131              3,324          
Deferred tax asset, net 3,661              2,334          
Other assets 9,786              4,040          
          Total assets 1,449,297$     1,223,380$ 

Deposits:
Noninterest-bearing 284,089$        216,220$    
Interest-bearing 938,101          868,550      

Total deposits 1,222,190       1,084,770   
Federal Home Loan Bank (FHLB) advances 74,460            24,843        
Other borrowings 4,369              -                 
Subordinated debt 24,350            -                 
Mortgagors' escrow 1,475              1,750          
Accrued expenses and other liabilities 15,261            12,244        
          Total liabilities 1,342,105       1,123,607   

Commitments and contingencies (Notes 5, 6, 10 and 12)

Retained earnings 114,881          102,753      
Accumulated other comprehensive loss (7,689)             (2,980)        
          Total retained earnings 107,192          99,773        
          Total liabilities and retained earnings 1,449,297$     1,223,380$ 

Liabilities and Retained Earnings

(In thousands)



BankFive, MHC and Subsidiary 

 

Consolidated Statements of Net Income 
Years Ended December 31, 2021 and 2020 

 
See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.

2021 2020

Interest and dividend income:
Loans, including fees 38,024$    36,442$    
Securities 3,990        3,023        
Dividends 217           292           
Interest-bearing deposits 48             113           

Total interest and dividend income 42,279      39,870      

Interest expense:
Deposits 5,455        8,468        
Borrowings 434           1,119        
Subordinated debt 364           -               

Total interest expense 6,253        9,587        

Net interest income 36,026      30,283      
Provision for loan losses 1,191        1,062        
Net interest income after provision for loan losses 34,836      29,221      

Non-interest income:
Customer service fees 3,946        3,203        
Mortgage banking gains, net 10,078      11,702      
Net gain on securities available for sale 30             747           
Unrealized gain on marketable equity securities 194           315           
Income on bank-owned life insurance 2,958        446           
Other 1,445        1,215        

Total non-interest income 18,651      17,628      

Non-interest expense:
Salaries and employee benefits 22,833      20,851      
Occupancy and equipment 3,647        3,219        
Data processing 4,446        3,935        
Professional fees 866           728           
Advertising 1,323        1,109        
Deposit insurance 494           538           
Other 4,861        5,027        

Total non-interest expense 38,470      35,407      

Income before income taxes 15,016      11,442      
Provision for income taxes 2,888        2,806        
Net income 12,128$    8,636$      

 (In thousands) 



BankFive, MHC and Subsidiary 

 

Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income 
Years Ended December 31, 2021 and 2020 

 

 
(1) Amounts are included in net gain on sales of securities available for sale in the 

consolidated statements of net income. Income tax provision associated with the 
reclassification adjustments for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020 was 
$7,000 and $164,000 respectively 

(2) Amounts are included in other non-interest expense in the consolidated statements of 
net income. Income tax benefit associated with the reclassification adjustments for 
the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020 was $139,000 and $298,000, 
respectively. 

 
See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.  
 

2021 2020

Net income 12,128$  8,636$    

Other comprehensive income (loss):
Available for sale securities:

Net unrealized holding gains (losses) (6,804)     2,576      
Reclassification adjustment for gains realized in income (1) (30)          (747)        

Net unrealized holding gains (losses) (6,834)     1,829      
Tax effects 1,517      (404)        

Net-of-tax amount (5,317)     1,425      

Defined benefit pension plan:
Gains (losses) arising during the year 350         (3,068)     

495         347         

-              713         
Net unrealized actuarial gains (losses) 845         (2,008)     
Tax effects (237)        565         

Net-of-tax amount 608         (1,443)     

Total other comprehensive loss (4,709)     (18)          

Comprehensive income 7,419$    8,618$    

(In thousands)

Reclassification adjustment for losses recognized in net periodic benefit  
cost (2) 

Reclassification adjustments for settlement loss recognized in net periodic 
benefit cost (2)



BankFive, MHC and Subsidiary 

 

Consolidated Statements of Changes in Retained Earnings 
Years Ended December 31, 2021 and 2020 

 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements. 
 

Accumulated
Other

Retained Comprehensive
Earnings Loss Total

Balance at December 31, 2019 94,117$             (2,962)$              91,155$             

Comprehensive income 8,636                 (18)                     8,618                 

Balance at December 31, 2020 102,753             (2,980)                99,773               

Comprehensive income 12,128               (4,709)                7,419                 

Balance at December 31, 2021 114,881$           (7,689)$              107,192$           

(In thousands)



BankFive, MHC and Subsidiary 

 

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows 
Years Ended December 31, 2021 and 2020 

 
See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements. 

2021 2020

Cash flows from operating activities:
Net income 12,128$   8,636$     
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash used in
operating activities:

Provision for loan losses 1,191       1,062       
Net amortization of securities premiums 1,190       1,490       
Unrealized gain on marketable equity securities (194)         (315)         
Amortization (accretion) of net deferred loan fees and costs (621)         801          
Depreciation and amortization of premises and equipment 1,449       1,222       
Amortization of subordinated debt issuance costs 28            -               
Net gain on sales of securities available for sale (30)           (747)         
Deferred income tax benefit (47)           (80)           
Increase in bank-owned life insurance (259)         (349)         
Gain on bank-owned life insurance death benefit (2,539)      -               
Net change in:

Loans held for sale (11,642)    (30,264)    
Accrued interest receivable 193          (347)         
Other assets (3,207)      (1,383)      
Other liabilities 3,862       1,693       

                 Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities 1,502       (18,581)    

Cash flows from investing activities:
    Securities available for sale:
         Maturities, principal payments and calls 34,594     60,108     
         Sales 47,680     62,733     
         Purchases (140,359)  (184,444)  
    Securities held to maturity:
         Maturities, principal payments and calls 828          784          
         Purchases (4,267)      (1,000)      
    Purchase of marketable equity securities -               (500)         
    Redemptions of restricted stock 432          988          
    Purchase of restricted stock (2,679)      (302)         
    Loan originations, net of principal payments (146,782)  (57,095)    
    Net purchases of premises and equipment (4,110)      (1,994)      
            Net cash used in investing activities (214,663)  (120,722)  

(In thousands)



BankFive, MHC and Subsidiary 

 

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows 
Years Ended December 31, 2021 and 2020 

 
   

 
 

 
 
See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements. 
 

2021 2020

Cash flows from financing activities:
    Net increase in deposits     137,145     168,985 
    Proceeds from FHLB advances       97,167       46,300 
    Repayment of FHLB advances     (47,550)     (75,136)
    Proceeds from PPPLF advances       30,103       18,128 
    Repayment of PPPLF advances     (25,734)     (18,128)
    Proceeds from issuance of subordinated debt, net of issuance costs       24,322                - 
              Net cash provided by financing activities     215,453     140,149 

Net change in cash and cash equivalents         2,292            846 

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year       44,288       43,442 

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 46,580$   44,288$   

Supplemental disclosures of cash flow information:
    Interest paid on deposits and borrowings 5,915$     9,661$     
    Income taxes paid, net 3,872       2,387       

 (In thousands) 



BankFive, MHC and Subsidiary 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 

Years Ended December 31, 2021 and 2020 

 

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
 
Basis of Presentation and Consolidation 
 
The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of BankFive, MHC, its wholly-owned 
subsidiary, BankFive Corporation, and BankFive Corporation’s wholly-owned subsidiary, Fall River 
Five Cents Savings Bank (the “Bank”) (collectively, the “Company”). The Bank has wholly-owned 
subsidiaries, North Main Securities Corporation and Hills and Mills Securities Corporation, which were 
established to buy, hold, and sell investment securities. The Bank’s other wholly-owned subsidiaries, 
Spindle City Realty, LLC and Taunton River Realty, LLC, were established to hold and maintain 
foreclosed real estate. All significant intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated in 
consolidation. 
 
Nature of Operations 
 
The Company provides a variety of financial services to individuals and small businesses through its 
offices in Southeastern, Massachusetts and Rhode Island. Its primary deposit products are savings and 
term certificate accounts and its primary lending products are residential and commercial mortgage 
loans and commercial loans. 
 
Use of Estimates 
 
In preparing the financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the 
United States of America, management is required to make estimates and assumptions that affect the 
reported amounts of assets and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date 
of the financial statements, and income and expense during the reporting period. Actual results could 
differ from those estimates. Material estimates that are particularly susceptible to change in the near-term 
relate to the determination of the allowance for loan losses, the defined benefit pension liability, 
valuation of mortgage banking derivatives and the realizability of deferred tax assets. 
 
Fair Value Hierarchy 
   
The Company groups its assets measured at fair value in three levels, based on the markets in which the 
assets are traded and the reliability of the assumptions used to determine fair value. 
 
Level 1 – Valuation is based on quoted prices in active markets for identical assets. Valuations are 
obtained from readily available pricing sources for market transactions involving identical assets. 
 
Level 2 – Valuation is based on observable inputs other than Level 1 prices, such as quoted prices for 
similar assets; quoted prices in markets that are not active; or other inputs that are observable or can be 
corroborated by observable market data for substantially the full term of the assets. 
 
Level 3 – Valuation is based on unobservable inputs that are supported by little or no market activity 
and that are significant to the fair value of the assets. Level 3 assets include assets whose value is 
determined using unobservable inputs to pricing models, discounted cash flow methodologies, or similar 



BankFive, MHC and Subsidiary 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 

Years Ended December 31, 2021 and 2020 

 

techniques, as well as instruments for which the determination of fair value requires significant 
management judgment or estimation. 
 
Reclassification 
 
Certain amounts in the 2020 consolidated financial statements have been reclassified to conform to the 
2021 presentation. 
 
Risks and Uncertainties 
 
On March 11, 2020, the World Health Organization declared the spread of the COVID-19 virus a 
pandemic. The continued spread of COVID-19 has caused disruptions in the national and local 
economies and across a variety of industries due in part to public health measures implemented by state 
and local governments and the resulting sustained economic uncertainty. These issues have affected the 
financial markets including a significant decline in market interest rates and volatility in the securities 
market. Despite the many government stimulus programs introduced during the pandemic, the extent of 
any prolonged impact to the economy could adversely affect the ability of the Company’s borrowers to 
satisfy their obligations, decrease the demand for loans, disrupt banking operations, impact liquidity, or 
cause a decline in collateral values. While management has taken measures to mitigate the impact of the 
pandemic, such as temporary branch closures, transitioning to a largely remote work environment, and 
participation in government stimulus programs, the long-term impact to the Company remains uncertain.  
 
Cash and Cash Equivalents 
 
For purposes of the consolidated statements of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents include cash on 
hand, amounts due from banks and interest-bearing deposits, all of which have original maturities less 
than ninety days.  
 
Restricted Cash 

 
The Company maintains cash collateral balances which have been pledged to derivative counterparties 
and are legally restricted as to use. 

 
Securities 
 
Debt securities that management has the positive intent and ability to hold to maturity are classified as 
“held to maturity” and recorded at amortized cost.  Debt securities not classified as held to maturity are 
classified as “available for sale” and recorded at fair value, with unrealized gains and losses excluded 
from earnings and reported in other comprehensive income/loss. Marketable equity securities are 
recorded at fair value, with unrealized gains and losses included in earnings. 
 
Gains and losses on the sale of securities are recorded on the trade date and are determined using the 
specific identification method. Purchase discounts and non-callable security premiums are recognized in 
interest income using the interest method over the contractual terms of the securities and callable 
purchase premiums are amortized to the earliest call date.  



BankFive, MHC and Subsidiary 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 

Years Ended December 31, 2021 and 2020 

 

 
Each reporting period, the Company evaluates all debt securities with a decline in fair value below the 
amortized cost of the investment to determine whether or not the impairment is deemed to be other-than-
temporary (“OTTI”). OTTI is required to be recognized (1) if the Company intends to sell the security; 
(2) if it is “more likely than not” that the Company will be required to sell the security before recovery 
of its amortized cost basis; or (3) if the present value of expected cash flows is not sufficient to recover 
the entire amortized cost basis. For all impaired securities that the Company intends to sell, or more 
likely than not will be required to sell, the full amount of the depreciation is recognized as OTTI through 
earnings. Credit-related OTTI for all other impaired securities is recognized through earnings. Non-
credit related OTTI for such securities is recognized in other comprehensive income/loss, net of 
applicable taxes. 
 
Loans Held for Sale 
 
Loans originated and intended for sale in the secondary market are carried at the lower of cost or estimated 
fair value in the aggregate. Net unrealized losses, if any, are recognized through a valuation allowance 
by charges to income. 
 
Loans 
 
The Company grants mortgage, commercial, and consumer loans to customers. The Company’s lending 
activities are conducted principally in southeastern Massachusetts and Rhode Island.  The ability of the 
Company’s debtors to honor their contracts is dependent upon the real estate and general economic 
conditions in this area. 
 
Loans that management has the intent and ability to hold for the foreseeable future or until maturity or 
pay-off are reported at their outstanding unpaid principal balances adjusted for charge-offs, the 
allowance for loan losses, any deferred fees or costs on originated loans, and premiums or discounts on 
purchased loans. Interest income is accrued on the unpaid principal balance. Loan origination fees, 
certain direct origination costs and purchase premiums and discounts are deferred and amortized to 
interest income using the interest method. 
 
Accrual of interest on loans is discontinued when, in the judgment of management, the collectability of 
the principal or interest becomes doubtful. When a loan is placed on nonaccrual status, all interest 
previously accrued is reversed against current period interest income. Past due status is based on the 
contractual terms of the loan. The interest on these loans is accounted for on the cash-basis or cost-
recovery method until qualifying for return to accrual. Loans are returned to accrual status when all 
principal and interest amounts contractually due are brought current and future payments are reasonably 
assured. 
 
The Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic Security Act (CARES ACT) established the Paycheck 
Protection Program (PPP), a stimulus program which grants SBA-Guaranteed, forgivable loans to 
businesses to encourage employee retention by subsidizing payroll and certain other costs during the 
pandemic. These loans are originated and funded by financial institutions and are an extension of the 



BankFive, MHC and Subsidiary 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 

Years Ended December 31, 2021 and 2020 

 

Small Business Administration’s (SBA) 7(a) loan program. The Company funded these loans with 
borrowings from the Paycheck Protection Program Liquidity Facility (PPPLF) administered by the 
Federal Reserve Bank. The Company originated 499 and 588 PPP loans totaling $38,197,000 and 
$58,077,000 and recorded deferred fees of $1,696,000 and $2,444,000 during the years ended December 
31, 2021 and 2020, respectively. Origination fees, net of direct origination costs, are being amortized into 
interest income over the contractual life of each loan. Included in the loan portfolio at December 31, 2021 
and 2020 was 80 and 399 PPP loans amounting $6,716,000 and $35,466,000, respectively, which are 
classified within commercial loans.   
 
Allowance for Loan Losses 

The adequacy of the allowance for loan losses is evaluated on a regular basis by management and 
represents an amount which is available to absorb losses on existing loans that may become uncollectible 
and is established through a provision for losses charged to earnings. This evaluation is inherently 
subjective as it requires estimates that are susceptible to significant revision as more information 
becomes available. Loan losses are charged against the allowance when management believes the 
uncollectibility of a loan balance is confirmed. Subsequent recoveries, if any, are credited to the 
allowance. The allowance for loan losses consists of general, specific, and unallocated components, as 
further described below. 
 
General component 
 
The general component of the allowance for loan losses is based on historical loss experience adjusted for 
qualitative factors stratified by the following loan segments: residential real estate, commercial real 
estate, construction, commercial, and consumer. 
 
Management uses a rolling average of historical losses based on a time frame appropriate to capture 
relevant loss data for each loan segment. This historical loss factor is adjusted for the following 
qualitative factors: national and local economic trends and conditions; changes in the nature, volume and 
terms of loans; changes in experience, ability and depth of lending management; changes in loan 
underwriting policies and procedures; banking industry conditions; changes in credit concentrations; 
changes in loan review system and oversight; levels/trends in delinquencies and changes in collateral 
value. There were no changes in the Company’s policies or methodology pertaining to the general 
component of the allowance for loan losses during 2021 or 2020. 
 
Although not separately segmented, loans subject to COVID-19 modifications are monitored within their 
respective segments for purposes of identifying any potential problem loans and to ensure that their 
respective risk are capture in the allowance model.  
 
The qualitative factors are determined based on the various risk characteristics of each loan segment. 
Risk characteristics relevant to each portfolio segment are as follows: 
 
Residential real estate (including equity lines-of-credit and second mortgages classes) – The Company 
generally does not originate loans with a loan-to-value ratio greater than 95 percent and does not grant 



BankFive, MHC and Subsidiary 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 

Years Ended December 31, 2021 and 2020 

 

loans that would be classified as subprime upon origination. Loans with loan-to-value ratios in excess of 
80 percent generally require private mortgage insurance. The Company generally has 1st or 2nd liens on 
property securing equity lines-of-credit. Substantially all loans in this segment are collateralized by 
owner-occupied residential real estate and repayment is dependent on the credit quality of the individual 
borrowers. The overall health of the economy, including unemployment rates and housing prices, will 
have an effect on the credit quality in this segment. 
 
Commercial real estate – Loans in this segment are secured by both owner-occupied and non-owner 
occupied properties.  The underlying cash flows generated by the business enterprises occupying the 
real estate may be adversely impacted by an economic downturn, which will have an effect on the credit 
quality in this segment. The underlying cash flows generated by the properties are similarly impacted 
by economic events. As appropriate, management periodically obtains financial statements of the 
business enterprises or rent rolls and monitors the cash flows and underlying real estate values of these 
loans. 
 
Construction – Loans in this segment are primarily real estate development loans that may be considered 
speculative in nature since the repayment of the loans is usually derived from the sale of the property 
once it is developed. Credit risk is affected by cost overruns, time to sell at an adequate price and 
general market conditions. 
 
Commercial – Loans in this segment are made to businesses and are generally secured by assets of the 
business and guaranteed by the business owners. Repayment is expected from the cash flows of the 
operating businesses or the net worth and other income of the guarantors. The local economy and the 
level of business revenues may have an effect on the credit quality in this segment. 
 
Consumer – The Company offers a variety of consumer and other loans, generally secured by personal 
property or savings.  Repayment is dependent on the income and net worth of the individual borrowers. 
 
Allocated component 
 
The allocated component relates to loans that are classified as impaired. Based on internal credit ratings, 
residential real estate loans, commercial real estate loans, construction loans and commercial loans are 
evaluated for impairment on a loan-by-loan basis. Impairment is measured by either the present value of 
expected future cash flows discounted at the loan’s existing interest rate or the fair value of the collateral 
if the loan is collateral dependent. 
 
An allowance is established when the discounted cash flows (or collateral value) of the impaired loan is 
lower than the carrying value of that loan. Large groups of smaller balance homogeneous loans are 
collectively evaluated for impairment. Accordingly, the Company does not separately identify 
individual consumer loans for impairment disclosures, unless such loans are subject to a troubled debt 
restructuring agreement. 
 
A loan is considered impaired when, based on current information and events, it is probable that a 
creditor will be unable to collect the scheduled payments of principal or interest when due according to 
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the contractual terms of the loan agreement. Factors considered by management in determining 
impairment include payment status, collateral value, and the probability of collecting scheduled principal 
and interest payments when due.  Loans that experience insignificant payment delays and payment 
shortfalls generally are not classified as impaired. Management determines the significance of payment 
delays and payment shortfalls on a case-by-case basis, taking into consideration all of the circumstances 
surrounding the loan and the borrower, including the length of the delay, the reasons for the delay, the 
borrower’s prior payment record, and the amount of the shortfall in relation to the principal and interest 
owed. 
 
The Company periodically may agree to modify the contractual terms of loans.  When a loan is modified 
and a concession is made to a borrower experiencing financial difficulty, the modification is considered 
a troubled debt restructuring (“TDR”).  All TDRs are initially classified as impaired. 
 
The Company has granted requests for payment deferrals to borrowers affected by the COVID-19 
pandemic which are not classified as troubled debt restructurings (TDRs) in accordance with Section 
4013 of the CARES Act and regulatory guidelines for working with borrowers affected by COVID-19. 
Interest continues to accrue during the deferral period with a balloon payment due upon maturity. Such 
loans are not considered delinquent if they are being paid in accordance with the modified terms.  
 
Unallocated component 
 
An unallocated component is maintained to cover uncertainties that could affect management’s estimate 
of probable losses. The unallocated component of the allowance reflects the margin of imprecision 
inherent in the underlying assumptions used in the methodologies for estimating allocated and general 
reserves in the portfolio. Management believes that the allowance for loan losses is adequate. While 
management uses available information to recognize losses on loans, future additions to the allowance 
may be necessary. 
 
Derivative Financial Instruments Not Designated as Hedging Instruments  

 
Loan Level Interest Rate Swaps 

 
The Company enters into interest rate swap agreements with commercial loan customers to synthetically 
convert the customer’s loan from a variable rate to a fixed rate. Terms of these “back-to-back” offsetting 
swap agreements require the Company to pay interest to the customer at a floating rate on the notional 
amount and receive interest from the customer at a fixed rate on the same notional amount. Concurrently, 
the Company enters into an offsetting swap with a financial institution counterparty and pays the 
counterparty interest at the same fixed rate and notional amount. Accordingly, changes in the fair value of 
these interest rate swaps, which offset each other, are recognized in current earnings within other non-
interest income. The swaps are reported at fair value within other assets and other liabilities in the 
consolidated balance sheet. Any net gain or loss resulting from changes in fair value is recognized in 
other non-interest income. These loan level swaps qualify as derivatives but are not designated or 
accounted for as hedging instruments.  
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Mortgage Banking Derivatives 
 
Derivative Loan Commitments 
 
Residential real estate loan commitments are referred to as derivative loan commitments if the loan that 
will result from exercise of the commitment will be held for sale upon funding. Loan commitments that 
are derivatives are recognized at fair value on the consolidated balance sheet in other assets and other 
liabilities with changes in their fair values recorded in mortgage banking gains, net.  
 
Forward Loan Sale Commitments 
 
To protect against the price risk inherent in derivative loan commitments, the Company utilizes both 
“mandatory delivery” and “best efforts” forward loan sale commitments to mitigate the risk of potential 
decrease in the values of loans that would result from the exercise of the derivative loan commitments. 
Forward sale commitments are recognized at fair value on the consolidated balance sheet in other assets 
and other liabilities with changes in their fair values recorded in mortgage banking gains, net.  
 
Restricted Stock 
 
Federal Home Loan Bank Stock 
 
The Company, as a member of the FHLB system, is required to maintain an investment in capital stock 
of the FHLB. FHLB stock amounted to $4,077,000 and $2,080,000 at December 31, 2021 and 2020, 
respectively.  Based on the redemption provisions of the FHLB, the stock has no quoted market value 
and is carried at cost. At its discretion, the FHLB may declare dividends on the stock. The Company 
reviews for impairment based on the ultimate recoverability of the cost basis in the FHLB stock. As of 
December 31, 2021 and 2020, no impairment has been recognized. 
 
Federal Reserve Bank Stock 
 
The Company, as a member of the Federal Reserve System is required to hold Federal Reserve Bank 
(“FRB”) stock equal to 0.06% of capital.  One-half of the Bank’s subscription is paid to the Federal 
Reserve Bank of Boston and the remaining half is subject to call when deemed necessary by the Board of 
Governors of the Federal Reserve system. FRB stock amounted to $3,061,000 and $2,821,000 at 
December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively. 
 
Other Restricted Stock  
 
The Company is required to maintain an investment in capital stock in connection with agreements in 
place with two third party vendors. This stock amounted to $320,000 and $310,000 at December 31, 2021 
and 2020, respectively.  The stock has no quoted market value and is carried at cost. The Company 
reviews for impairment based on the ultimate recoverability of the cost basis in the stock. As of 
December 31, 2021 and 2020, no impairment has been recognized. 
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Premises and Equipment 
 
Land is stated at cost. Buildings, leasehold improvements and equipment are stated at cost, net of 
accumulated depreciation and amortization. Depreciation and amortization is computed using the 
straight-line method based on the estimated useful lives of the respective assets or the terms of the 
respective leases, if shorter. Expected lease terms include lease option periods to the extent that the 
exercise of such options is reasonably assured. 
 
Goodwill  
 
Goodwill is not amortized, but is evaluated for impairment on an annual basis. As of December 31, 2021 
and 2020, the Company has not recorded any impairment loss on its goodwill.  
 
Bank-owned Life Insurance 
 
Bank-owned life insurance policies are reflected on the consolidated balance sheets at cash surrender 
value.  Changes in the net cash surrender value of the policies, as well as insurance proceeds received in 
excess of cash surrender value, are reflected in non-interest income on the consolidated statements of net 
income and are not subject to income taxes. 
 
Foreclosed Real Estate 
 
Real estate acquired through, or in lieu of, loan foreclosure are held for sale and are initially recorded at 
fair value at the date of foreclosure, establishing a new cost basis. Subsequent to foreclosure, valuations 
are periodically performed by management and the real estate is carried at the lower of carrying amount 
or fair value less cost to sell. Revenue and expenses from operations, any direct write-downs, and gains 
or losses on sales are included in other non-interest expense. There was no foreclosed real estate at 
December 31, 2021 and 2020. 
 
Transfers of Financial Assets 
 
Transfers of an entire financial asset, a group of entire financial assets, or a participating interest in an 
entire financial asset are accounted for as sales when control over the assets has been surrendered. 
Control over transferred assets is deemed to be surrendered when (1) the assets have been isolated from 
the Company, (2) the transferee obtains the right to pledge or exchange the transferred assets, and (3) the 
Company does not maintain effective control over the transferred assets. 
 
During the normal course of business, the Company may transfer a portion of a loan. In order to be 
eligible for sales treatment, the transfer of the portion of the loan must meet the criteria of a participating 
interest. If it does not meet the criteria of a participating interest, the transfer must be accounted for as a 
secured borrowing. In order to meet the criteria for a participating interest, all cash flows from the loan 
must be divided proportionately, the rights of each loan holder must have the same priority, the loan 
holders must have no recourse to the transferor other than standard representations and warranties and 
no loan holder has the right to pledge or exchange the entire loan. 
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Defined Benefit Pension Plan 
 
The compensation cost of an employee’s pension benefit is recognized on the projected unit credit 
method over the employee’s approximate service period. The aggregate cost method is utilized for 
funding purposes. 
 
The Company accounts for its defined benefit pension plan using an actuarial model that allocates 
pension costs over the service period of employees in the plan. The Company accounts for the over-
funded or under-funded status of its defined benefit plan as an asset or liability in its consolidated 
balance sheets and recognizes changes in the funded status in the year in which the changes occur 
through other comprehensive income/loss. 
 
Advertising 
 
Advertising costs are expensed as incurred. 
 
Income Taxes 
 
Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are determined using the liability (or balance sheet) method. 
Under this method, the net deferred tax asset or liability is determined based on the tax effects of the 
temporary differences between the book and tax bases of the various balance sheet assets and liabilities 
and gives current recognition to changes in tax rates and laws in the period of enactment. A valuation 
allowance is established against deferred tax assets when, based upon the available evidence including 
historical and projected taxable income, it is more likely than not that some or all of the deferred tax 
assets will not be realized. 
 
The Company does not have any uncertain tax positions at December 31, 2021 which require accrual or 
disclosure. The Company records interest and penalties as part of income tax expense. No interest or 
penalties were recorded for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020. 
 
Comprehensive Income/Loss 
 
Accounting principles generally require that recognized revenue, expenses, gains and losses be included 
in net income. Although certain changes in assets and liabilities are reported as a separate component of 
the retained earnings section of the balance sheet, such items, along with net income, are components of 
comprehensive income/loss. 
 
 
 
 

  



BankFive, MHC and Subsidiary 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 

Years Ended December 31, 2021 and 2020 

 

The components of accumulated other comprehensive loss, included in retained earnings, are as follows: 
 

 
 
  

2021 2020

Securities Available For Sale

Net unrealized gain (loss) (5,213)$   1,621$     
Tax effect 1,160      (357)         
           Net-of-tax amount (4,053)     1,264       

Defined Benefit Pension Plan

Unrecognized net actuarial loss (5,058)     (5,903)      
Tax effect 1,422      1,659       
           Net-of-tax amount (3,636)     (4,244)      

(7,689)$   (2,980)$    

December 31,

(In thousands)
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Recent Accounting Pronouncements 
 

In February 2016, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued Accounting Standards 
Update (ASU) 2016-02, Leases (Topic 842). This Update is intended to improve financial reporting about 
leasing transactions and the key provision impacting the Company is the requirement for a lessee to record 
a right-to-use asset and a liability representing the obligation to make lease payments for long-term 
operating leases. As amended, the Update will be effective for non-public business entities for fiscal years 
beginning after December 15, 2021, and interim periods within fiscal years beginning after December 15, 
2022.  Early adoption is permitted. Upon adoption, the Company’s assets and liabilities will increase 
based on the present value of remaining lease payments for leases in place at adoption; however 
management does not expect this ASU to have a material impact on the consolidated financial statements. 
 
In June 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-13, Financial Instruments —Credit Losses (Topic 326): 
Measurement of Credit Losses on Financial Instruments. The amendments in this ASU will require that 
an allowance be recognized for certain financial assets for current expected credit losses (CECL): a 
current estimate of all contractual cash flows not expected to be collected. This estimate will be based on 
historical experience, current conditions and reasonable and supportable forecasts. Evaluating impairment 
of loans and securities held to maturity are included in the scope. Securities available for sale are not 
included in the scope and continue with current guidance, as amended for use of an allowance for 
estimated impairment. In addition purchased credit deteriorated assets will require the recording of an 
allowance for loan losses upon acquisition. The standard is effective for fiscal years beginning after 
December 15, 2022, including interim periods within those fiscal years. Early adoption is permitted. 
Management is currently evaluating the impact to the consolidated financial statements of adopting this 
Update. Management has begun the process of collecting historical data and analyzing the loan portfolio to 
identify segments that have common risk characteristics or sensitivities. Management expects adoption of 
this Update to have a significant impact on the methodology used to calculate the allowance for loan losses, 
however, the financial impacts have not been determined. 

 
2. RESTRICTIONS ON CASH AND DUE FROM BANKS 
 
The Company is required to maintain average balances on hand or with the Federal Reserve Bank. On 
March 16, 2020, the Federal Reserve Bank eliminated the requirements to maintain a reserve to allow 
financial institutions to support lending to households and business as a result of the World Health 
Organization declaring the coronavirus outbreak a pandemic on March 11, 2020.  
 
At December 31, 2021 and 2020, $504,000 of cash and due from banks is in a restricted account for the 
processing of Bank checks. Additionally, at December 31, 2021 and 2020, the Company is required to 
maintain a balance of $55,000 with a correspondent bank as collateral for a line of credit agreement. 
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3. SECURITIES 
 
The amortized cost and fair value of debt securities, with gross unrealized gains and losses, are as 
follows: 

 

Gross Gross
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Fair

Cost Gains Losses Value

Securities available for sale

Debt securities:
Government-sponsored agency obligations 99,429$     123$          3,779$       95,773$     
Municipal bonds 46,980       586            750            46,816       
Mortgage-backed securities:

       Residential 21,759       44              242            21,561       
       Commercial 7,470         111            3                7,578         

Collateralized mortgage obligations 45,345       95              889            44,551       
Corporate bonds 25,479       5                473            25,011       
U.S. Treasuries 2,153         -                 41              2,112         

Total 248,615$   964$          6,177$       243,402$   

Securities held to maturity

Debt securities:
Municipal bonds 995$          4$              -$               999$          
Industrial revenue bonds 9,753                          2 -                 9,755         
Mortgage-backed securities:

       Residential 885                           43 -                 928            
       Commercial 512                           24 -                 536            

Total 12,145$     73$            -$               12,218$     

December 31, 2021

(In thousands)
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Mortgage-backed securities and collateralized mortgage obligations consist primarily of securities 
issued by the U.S. Government and government-sponsored enterprises. 
 
Proceeds from sales of securities available for sale totaled $47,680,000 for the year ended December 
31, 2021, which realized gross gains of $216,000 and gross losses of $185,000. Proceeds from sales of 
securities available for sale totaled $62,733,000 for the year ended December 31, 2020, which 
realized gross gains of $852,000 and gross losses of $105,000.   

 
 

  

Gross Gross
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Fair

Cost Gains Losses Value

Securities available for sale

Debt securities:
Government-sponsored agency obligations 79,105$     416$          551$          78,970$     
Municipal bonds 40,715       821            187            41,349       
Mortgage-backed securities:

       Residential 16,375       199            8                16,566       
       Commercial 9,525         295            3                9,817         

Collateralized mortgage obligations 45,453       690            48              46,094       
Corporate bonds 500            -                 3                497            

Total 191,673$   2,421$       800$          193,293$   

Securities held to maturity

Debt securities:
Municipal bonds 995$          4$              -$               999$          
Industrial revenue bonds 5,675                          - -                 5,675         
Mortgage-backed securities:

       Residential 1,372                        85 -                 1,457         
       Commercial 682                           41 -                 723            

Total 8,724$       130$          -$               8,854$       

(In thousands)

December 31, 2020
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The scheduled maturities of debt securities at December 31, 2021 are shown below. Expected 
maturities may differ from contractual maturities because issuers may have the right to call or 
prepay obligations with or without call or prepayment penalties. 
 

 
 

Information pertaining to securities with gross unrealized losses aggregated by investment category 
and length of time that individual securities have been in a continuous loss position, follows: 
 

  

Amortized Fair Amortized Fair 
Cost Value Cost Value

Within 1 year 51$              51$             -$                -$                 
Over 1 year to 5 years 6,810           6,763          995             999              
Over 5 years to 10 years 49,746         49,199        999             1,001           
Over 10 years 117,434       113,699      8,754          8,754           

174,041       169,712      10,748        10,754         
Mortgage-backed securities 29,229         29,139        1,397          1,464           
Collateralized mortgage obligations 45,345         44,551        -                  -                   

248,615$     243,402$    12,145$      12,218$       

Available for Sale Held to Maturity

(In thousands)

Gross Gross
Unrealized Fair Unrealized Fair

Losses Value Losses Value

December 31, 2021

Securities available for sale

Debt securities:
Government-sponsored agency obligations  $      1,766  $   56,687  $      2,013  $     39,086 
Municpal bonds 379           22,352      371           24,463        
Mortgage-backed securities 221           18,717      24             2,843          
Collateralized mortgage obligations 565           28,047      324           17,070        
Corporate bonds 473           25,011      -                -                 
U.S. Treasuries 41             2,112        -                -                 

Total 3,445$      152,926$  2,732$      83,462$      

Less Than Twelve Months Over Twelve Months

(In thousands)
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At December 31, 2021, one hundred and 295 securities have unrealized losses with aggregate 
depreciation of 2.4% from the Company’s amortized cost basis. The unrealized losses on these 
securities were primarily caused by changes in interest rates.  
 
It is expected that the securities would not be settled at a price less than the par value of the 
investment. Because the decline in market value is attributable to changes in interest rates and not 
to credit quality, and because the Company does not intend to sell the investments and it is more 
likely than not that the Company will not be required to sell the investments before recovery of 
their amortized cost bases, which may be maturity, the Company does not consider these 
investments to be other-than-temporarily impaired at December 31, 2021. 
 
Marketable Equity Securities 
 
Marketable equity securities consist of common stocks. The Company held marketable equity 
securities with aggregate fair value of $1,009,000 and $815,000 at December 31, 2021 and 2020, 
respectively. During the year ended December 31, 2021 and 2020, net unrealized gains on 
marketable equity securities still held was $509,000 and $315,000, respectively.  

  

Gross Gross
Unrealized Fair Unrealized Fair

Losses Value Losses Value

December 31, 2020

Securities available for sale

Debt securities:
Government-sponsored agency obligations  $             1  $        266  $         550  $     37,739 
Residential mortgage-backed securities -                -               187           20,166        
Commercial mortgage-backed securities 3               59             8               4,013          
Collateralized mortgage obligations -                -               48             12,755        
Corporate bonds -                -               3               497             

Total 4$             325$         796$         75,170$      

Less Than Twelve Months Over Twelve Months

(In thousands)
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4. LOANS 
 
The composition of the loan portfolio follows:  

 
In the ordinary course of business, the Bank has granted loans to principal officers and directors and their 
affiliates amounting to $27,801,000 at December 31, 2021 and $10,485,000 at December 31, 2020. During 
the year ended December 31, 2021, total principal additions were $20,081,000 and total principal payments 
were $2,765,000. 
 
The CARES Act, was signed into law on March 27, 2020, and provided emergency economic relief to 
individuals and businesses impacted by the COVID-19 pandemic. The CARES Act authorized the SBA to 
temporarily guarantee loans under a new 7(a) loan program called the PPP. 
 
As a qualified SBA lender, the Bank were automatically authorized to originate PPP loans. 

 
An eligible business could apply for a PPP loan up to the lesser of: (1) 2.5 times its average monthly 
“payroll costs;” or (2) $10.0 million. PPP loans will have: (a) an interest rate of 1.0%, (b) a two or five-year 
loan term to maturity; and (c) principal and interest payments deferred until the SBA remits the forgiven 
amount to the Company or 10 months from the end of the covered period, as defined. The SBA will 
guarantee 100% of the PPP loans made to eligible borrowers. The entire principal amount of the 
borrower’s PPP loan, including any accrued interest, is eligible to be reduced by the loan forgiveness 
amount under the PPP so long as employee and compensation levels of the business are maintained and 

2021 2020

Mortgage loans on real estate:
    Residential 346,393$         301,759$   
    Commercial 447,537           322,897     
    Construction 13,579             5,983         
    Equity lines-of-credit 49,005             48,594       
    Second mortgages 6,897               7,020         
               Total mortgage loans on real estate 863,411           686,253     

Commercial 157,052           191,983     
Consumer loans 17,851             13,887       
               Total loans 1,038,314        892,123     

Allowance for loan losses (8,257)              (7,025)        
Net deferred loan costs 2,384               888            
Net unamortized loan premiums 222                  465            
               Loans, net 1,032,663$      886,451$   

December 31,

(In thousands)
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60% of the loan proceeds are used for payroll expenses, with the remaining 40% of the loan proceeds used 
for other qualifying expenses. 
 
Pursuant to Section 4013 of the CARES Act, financial institutions can suspend the requirements under U.S. 
GAAP related to TDRs for modifications made before December 31, 2021 to loans that were current as of 
December 31, 2019. 
 
As of December 31, 2021, the Company had no loans modified under the CARES Act in active 
forbearance. 
 
As of December 31, 2020, the Company had modified 208 loans aggregating $101,589,000 that are not 
considered troubled debt restructurings, primarily consisting of the deferral of principal and/or interest 
payments. Of these modifications, $101,266,000, or 99%, were performing in accordance with their 
modified terms. These loans are evaluated for impairment and non-accrual status in accordance with the 
Company’s current policies. Details with respect to actual loan modifications are as follows: 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  

Type of Loan Number of Loans Balance 
(Dollars in thousands)

Residential 47 20,023$                   
Commercial Real Estate 79 47,461                     
Commercial  57 32,822                     
Consumer 25 1,283                       
Total 208 101,589$                 
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Activity in the allowance for loan losses and allocation of the allowance to loan segments at and for the 
years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020 follows: 
 

 
  

Residential Commercial
Real Estate Real Estate Construction Commercial Consumer Unallocated Total

Year ended December 31, 2021
Balance at beginning of year 2,071$          3,442$          63$             1,317$          132$           -$       7,025$          
Provision (credit) for loan losses 47                 1,184            73               (155)              42               -         1,191            
Charge-offs -                -                -              (19)                (11)              -         (30)                
Recoveries 50                 -                -              17                 4                 -         71                 
Balance at end of year 2,168$          4,626$          136$           1,160$          167$           -$       8,257$          

At December 31, 2021

Amount of allowance for loan losses 
for impaired loans -$              -$              -$            -$              -$            -$       -$              

Amount of allowance for loan losses 
 for non-impaired loans 2,168            4,626            136             1,160            167             -         8,257            

        Total allowance for loan losses 2,168$          4,626$          136$           1,160$          167$           -$       8,257$          

Impaired loans 910$             781$             -$            -$              181$           1,872$          
Non-impaired loans 401,385        446,756        13,579        157,052        17,670        1,036,442     
        Total loans 402,295$      447,537$      13,579$      157,052$      17,851$      1,038,314$   

Residential Commercial
Real Estate Real Estate Construction Commercial Consumer Unallocated Total

Year ended December 31, 2020
Balance at beginning of year 1,471$          2,937$          120$           1,255$          122$           102$      6,007$          
Provision (credit) for loan losses 600               505               (57)              81                 35               (102)       1,062            
Charge-offs -                -                -              (25)                (31)              -         (56)                
Recoveries -                -                -              6                   6                 -         12                 
Balance at end of year 2,071$          3,442$          63$             1,317$          132$           -$       7,025$          

At December 31, 2020

Amount of allowance for loan losses 
for impaired loans -$              9$                 -$            12$               -$            -$       21$               

Amount of allowance for loan losses 
 for non-impaired loans 2,071            3,433            63               1,305            132             -         7,004            

        Total allowance for loan losses 2,071$          3,442$          63$             1,317$          132$           -$       7,025$          

Impaired loans 1,456$          584$             -$            444$             230$           2,714$          
Non-impaired loans 355,917        332,313        5,983          191,539        13,657        899,409        
        Total loans 357,373$      322,897$      5,983$        191,983$      13,887$      892,123$      

(In thousands)

(In thousands)
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The following is a summary of past due and non-accrual loans at December 31, 2021 and 2020 
respectively: 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  

90 Days Past Due > 90
30-59 Days 60-89 Days and Greater Total Days and Still Loans on

Past Due Past Due Past Due Past Due Accruing Non-accrual

December 31, 2021

Mortgage loans on real estate:
Residential 350$         -$              -$              350$     -$                  -$               
Second mortgages 741           39             829           1,609    -                    829            
Commercial -                669           781           1,450    -                    781            

Commercial -                73             -                73         -                    -                 
Consumer loans 2               -                -                2           -                    -                 
          Total 1,093$      781$         1,610$      3,484$  -$                  1,610$       

December 31, 2020

Mortgage loans on real estate:
Residential 410$         139$         1,266$      1,815$  -$                  1,266$       
Second mortgages -                -                131           131       -                    131            
Commercial -                -                444           444       -                    444            

Commercial -                -                306           306       -                    306            
          Total 410$         139$         2,147$      2,696$  -$                  2,147$       

(In thousands)
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The following is a summary of information pertaining to impaired loans: 
 

 
 

Unpaid
Recorded Principal Related
Investment Balance Allowance

Impaired loans without a valuation allowance:
Residential real estate 1,011$           1,011$           -$                  
Commercial real estate 781                781                -                    
Consumer 80                  80                  -                    

Total impaired loans 1,872$           1,872$           -$              

Interest
Average Interest Income
Recorded Income Recognized
Investment Recognized on Cash Basis

Residential real estate 1,304$           84$                33$                
Commercial real estate 588                30                  12                  
Commercial 12                  -                    -                    
Consumer 85                  5                    4                    

Total impaired loans 1,989$           119$              49$                

(In thousands)

December 31, 2021

(In thousands)

Year Ended December 31, 2021
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There were no residential real estate loans in the process of foreclosure at December 31, 2021 and 2020. 
 
No additional funds are committed to be advanced in connection with impaired loans at December 31, 
2021 and 2020. 
 
 

  

Unpaid
Recorded Principal Related
Investment Balance Allowance

Impaired loans without a valuation allowance:
Residential real estate 1,456$           1,456$           -$                  
Commercial real estate 278                278                -                    
Commercial 25                  25                  -                    
Consumer 230                230                -                    

Total 1,989             1,989             -                    

Impaired loans with a valuation allowance:
Commercial real estate 725                725                21                  

Total 725                725                21                  
Total impaired loans 2,714$           2,714$           21$                

Interest
Average Interest Income
Recorded Income Recognized
Investment Recognized on Cash Basis

Residential real estate 1,907$           131$              86$                
Commercial real estate 1,191             71                  68                  
Commercial 18                  4                    4                    
Consumer 168                8                    8                    

Total impaired loans 3,284$           214$              166$              

(In thousands)

December 31, 2020

(In thousands)

Year Ended December 31, 2020
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Due to the pandemic having a significant impact on certain industries, the following table provides 
information with respect to our commercial and commercial real estate loans by industry at December 31, 
2020.  
 

 
 
The following is a summary of troubled debt restructurings for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 
2020: 

 
 

 
In 2021 and 2020, loans were modified for principal and interest payment deferments. Management 
performs a discounted cash flow calculation to determine the amount of impairment reserve required on 
each of the troubled debt restructurings. Any reserve required is recorded through the provision for loan 
loss.  
 
There were no troubled debt restructurings that defaulted in the first twelve months after restructure 
during the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020. 
 

Industry Number of Loans Balance
(In thousands)

Residential non-owner occupied 183 68,736$          
Office buildings 102 56,456            
Retail - owner occupied 48 11,917            
Retail - non-owner occupied 35 33,780            
Hospitality 8 28,049            
Restaurants 38 17,373            
Recreational facilities 7 2,871              
Schools/child care facilities 12 8,490              

Pre-Modification Post-Modification 
Outstanding Outstanding 

Number of Recorded Recorded 
Contracts Investment Investment

Troubled debt restructurings:
Residential real estate 1 126$                     126$                     

Troubled debt restructurings:
     Commercial 2 725$                     725$                     

(Dollars in thousands)
December 31, 2021

December 31, 2020
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Credit Quality Information 
 
The Company utilizes a ten grade internal loan rating system for residential real estate, commercial real 
estate, construction, and commercial loans as follows: 
 
Loans rated in the first six grades (1-6) are considered “pass” rated loans with low to average risk. 
Residential loans are generally considered pass rated credits unless the relationship is part of a 
commercial credit that has a rating below pass or a loan is delinquent greater than ninety days. 
 
Loans rated 7 are considered “special mention.” These loans are starting to show signs of potential 
weakness and are being closely monitored by management. 
 
Loans rated 8 are considered “substandard.” Generally, a loan is considered substandard if it is 
inadequately protected by the current net worth and paying capacity of the obligors and/or the collateral 
pledged. There is a distinct possibility that the Company will sustain some loss if the weakness is not 
corrected. 
 
Loans rated 9 are considered “doubtful.” Loans classified as doubtful have all the weaknesses inherent 
in those classified substandard with the added characteristic that the weaknesses make collection or 
liquidation in full, on the basis of existing facts, conditions, and values, highly questionable. 
 
Loans rated 10 are considered uncollectible (“loss”) and of such little value that their continuance as 
loans is not warranted. 
 
The Company formally reviews all “pass” related relationships on an 18-24 month schedule. For 
relationships rated “special mention” or worse, formal reviews are conducted at least annually, or more 
often as needed. The Company also engages a third party to review a portion of the commercial real 
estate, construction, and commercial portfolios. The results of these reviews are incorporated as part of 
the Company’s overall review process. 
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The following tables present the Company’s loans by risk rating: 
 

 
 

Credit quality for equity lines-of-credit, second mortgages and consumer loans are determined by 
monitoring loan payment history and on-going communication with customers.   
 
5. LOAN SERVICING  
 
Loans serviced for others are not included in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets. The unpaid 
principal balances of residential mortgage loans serviced for others were $607,755,000 and $483,338,000 
at December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively, which includes $51,895,000 and $66,650,000 of loans sold 
with limited recourse provisions. 
 
In addition, the Company has transferred a portion of its originated commercial real estate loans to 
participating lenders. The amounts transferred have been accounted for as sales and are therefore not 
included in the Company’s accompanying consolidated balance sheets. The Company and participating 
lenders share ratably in any gains or losses that may result from a borrower’s lack of compliance with 
contractual terms of the loan. The Company continues to service the loans on behalf of the participating 
lenders and, as such, collects cash payments from the borrowers, remits payments (net of servicing fees) to 
participating lenders and disburses required escrow funds to relevant parties. At December 31, 2021 and 
2020, the Company was servicing commercial loans for participants aggregating $24,872,000 and 
$17,258,000, respectively.  
  

Commercial
Residential Real Estate Construction Commercial Total

December 31, 2021

Loans rated 1 - 6 345,747$    445,762$      13,579$        156,888$     961,976$       
Loans rated 7 509             1,067            -                    92                1,668             
Loans rated 8 137             708               -                    72                917                
      Total 346,393$    447,537$      13,579$        157,052$     964,561$       

December 31, 2020

Loans rated 1 - 6 299,667$    314,719$      5,983$          191,532$     811,901$       
Loans rated 7 921             7,453            -                    437              8,811             
Loans rated 8 1,171          725               -                    14                1,910             
      Total 301,759$    322,897$      5,983$          191,983$     822,622$       

(In thousands)
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6. PREMISES AND EQUIPMENT 
 
The major components of premises and equipment, net of accumulated depreciation and amortization, 
follows: 

 
Depreciation and amortization expense for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020 amounted to 
$1,449,000 and $1,222,000, respectively. 
 
Pursuant to the terms of non-cancelable lease agreements in effect at December 31, 2021, pertaining to 
banking premises, future minimum rent commitments under various operating leases are as follows: 
 

 
The leases contain options to extend for periods from five to thirty years. The cost of such rentals is not 
included above. Rent expense for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020 amounted to $534,000 
and $504,000, respectively.  
 

  

2021 2020

Land 4,663$     4,614$     
Buildings 19,155     16,921     
Leasehold improvements 2,558       2,462       
Equipment 11,587     10,542     

37,963     34,539     
Less accumulated depreciation and amortization (20,433)   (19,670)   

17,530$   14,869$   

December 31, 

(In thousands)

Years Ending
December 31, Amount

2022 541$       
2023 543         
2024 544         
2025 544         
2026 544         

Thereafter 50           
2,766$    

(In thousands)
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7. DEPOSITS 
 

Deposit balances consist of the following: 
 

 
At December 31, 2021 and 2020, included in certificates of deposit are brokered certificates of deposit 
amounting to $41,944,000 with a weighted-average rate of 0.70% and $21,131,000 with a weighted-
average rate of 2.08%, respectively. 

 
  

2021 2020

NOW and demand 385,779$    305,723$    
Money market deposits 207,096      169,201      
Savings 292,527      249,652      
               Total non-certificate accounts 885,402      724,576      

Term certificates of $250,000 or more 118,436      123,248      
Term certificates less than $250,000 218,352      236,946      
               Total certificate accounts 336,788      360,194      
               Total deposits 1,222,190$ 1,084,770$ 

December 31, 

(In thousands)

Average Average
Amount Rate Amount Rate

Maturing during:
2021 -$                 0.00% 242,264$     1.69%
2022 227,152       1.02 95,943         1.90
2023 62,197         0.71 12,602         1.20
2024 29,744         0.67 5,430           1.26
2025 12,843         1.01 3,955           1.05
2026 4,852           0.79 -                   -

336,788$     0.93% 360,194$     1.20%

(Dollars in thousands)

December 31,
2021 2020
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8. BORROWED FUNDS 
 
Federal Home Loan Bank Advances 
 
Information pertaining to fixed-rate FHLB advances is as follows:  

 
At December 31, 2020, the annual principal and interest payments on the amortizing advances were 
$3,436,000. On November 18, 2020, the Company prepaid the amortizing advances. 
 
At December 31, 2021 and 2020, included in FHLB advances is $9,460,000 and $9,843,000, respectively, 
under the FHLB Jobs for New England program, which have an interest rates of 0%.  The FHLB Jobs for 
New England program provides below market-rate financing for small business loans that create or 
preserve jobs, expand woman-, minority-, or veteran-owned businesses, or otherwise stimulate the 
economy in New England communities. 
 
The Company also has a $6,347,000 available line-of-credit with the FHLB at an interest rate that adjusts 
daily. There were no advances on this line at December 31, 2021 or 2020. Advances from the FHLB are 
secured by a blanket lien on qualified collateral defined principally as a percentage of the carrying value 
of first mortgage loans on owner-occupied residential and commercial property. 
 
Federal Reserve Bank PPPLF Advances 
 
During 2021 and 2020, in order to fund a portion of the Company’s PPP loan originations, the Company 
borrowed $30,102,000 and $18,128,000, respectively, from the Federal Reserve Bank’s PPPLF, which 
carries a rate of 0.35% fixed for the term of the corresponding PPP loans. The Company pledged eligible 
PPP loans as collateral for the borrowings. As loans are forgiven or paid down, funds are remitted to the 
Federal Reserve to pay back the advance. As of December 31, 2021, the Company had $4,369,000 

2021 2020
Weighted Weighted
Average Average

Amount Rate Amount Rate

Non-amortizing advances 
maturing during:

2021 -$         -% 8,493$     1.78%
2022 40,000     0.43 -           -
2023 15,000     1.87 5,000       3.79
2024 12,850     1.37 7,850       1.67
2025 3,500       - 3,500       -
2026 3,110       - -           -

Total FHLB advances 74,460$   0.84% 24,843$   1.90%

(Dollars in thousands)

December 31,
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outstanding under this agreement. As of December 31, 2020, there were no amounts outstanding under 
this agreement. 

 
The Company also has an agreement with the Federal Reserve Bank of Boston to borrow under the 
discount window. At December 31, 2021 and 2020, securities with a fair value of $8,374,000 and 
$11,344,000, respectively, and an amortized cost of $8,350,000 and $11,132,000, respectively, were 
pledged to secure such borrowings. At December 31, 2021 and 2020, there were no amounts outstanding 
under this agreement. 
 
Other Lines of Credit 
 
The Company has $106,000,000 and $81,000,000 of unsecured lines-of-credit with correspondent banks 
at December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively.  There were no amounts outstanding under these lines-of-
credit at December 31, 2021 and 2020. 

 
Subordinated Debt 
 
On August 13, 2021, the Company issued $25.0 million of 3.50% fixed-to-floating subordinated notes 
due August 13, 2031. The Company is obligated to pay 3.50% interest semiannually between August 
2021 and August 2025. Subsequently, the Company is obligated to pay three-month term Secured 
Overnight Financing Rate (SOFR) plus 2.86% quarterly until the notes mature in August 2031. Issuance 
costs were $678,000 and have been netted against subordinated debt on the Balance Sheet. These costs 
are being amortized over 10 years. Total amortization expense for the year end December 31, 2021 was 
$28,000.  
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9. INCOME TAXES 
 
The components of the income tax provision are as follows: 

 
 

The reasons for the differences between the statutory federal income tax provision and the actual income 
tax provision are summarized as follows: 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 

2021 2020

Current tax provision:
    Federal 2,129$    2,208$    
    State 806         678         
          Total current tax provision 2,935      2,886      

Deferred tax (benefit) provision:
    Federal (5)            (23)          
    State (26)          8             
    Change in valuation reserve (16)          (65)          
          Total deferred tax benefit (47)          (80)          
          Total tax provision 2,888$    2,806$    

Years Ended December 31,

(In thousands)

2021 2020

Statutory federal tax provision at 21% 3,153$       2,403$      
Increase (decrease) resulting from:
    State taxes, net of federal tax benefit 616            551           
    Change in valuation reserve (16)             (65)            
    Bank-owned life insurance (621)           (94)            
    Tax-exempt income (221)           (107)          
    Other, net (23)             118           

Total tax provision 2,888$       2,806$      

    Effective tax rates 19.2% 24.5%

Years Ended December 31,

(In thousands)
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The tax effects of each items that gives rise to deferred taxes are as follows: 
 

 
The gross deferred tax assets is $6,816,000 and $5,075,000 at December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively. 
 
The charitable contribution carryover has varying expiration dates through 2026. At December 31, 2020, 
management determined that it is more likely than not that the Company will not realize a state tax 
benefit on its charitable contribution carryover. Accordingly, at December 31, 2020, the Company 
established a valuation reserve for $16,000. At December 31, 2021, the Company does not have a 
valuation reserve recorded on the Balance Sheet.  
 
A summary of the change in the net deferred tax asset is as follows: 
 

 
The federal income tax reserve for loan losses at the Company’s base year is $3,270,000. If any portion 
of the reserve is used for purposes other than to absorb loan losses, approximately 150% of the amount 

2021 2020
(In thousands)(In thousands)

Net unrealized (gain) loss on securities available for sale 1,160$     (357)$       
Investments in limited partnerships (793)         (766)         
Depreciation and amortization (194)         140          
Allowance for loan losses 2,318       1,975       
Employee benefit plans 909          516          
Net unrealized defined benefit pension plan losses 1,422       1,659       
Charitable contribution carryover -               16            
Mortgage servcings rights (751)         (334)         
Deferred income (670)         (496)         
Other, net 260          (3)             

3,661       2,350       
Valuation reserve -               (16)           
Net deferred tax asset 3,661$     2,334$     

December 31,

Years Ended December 31,
2021 2020

Balance at beginning of year 2,334$    2,093$    
Deferred tax impact of other comprehensive income (loss) 1,280      161         
Deferred tax benefit 47           80           
Balance at end of year 3,661$    2,334$    

(In thousands)
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actually used (limited to the amount of the reserve) would be subject to taxation in the year in which 
used. As the Company intends to use the reserve to absorb only loan losses, a deferred tax liability of 
$919,000 has not been provided. 
 
The Company’s income tax returns are subject to review and examination by federal and state taxing 
authorities. The Company is currently open to audit under the applicable statutes of limitations by the 
Internal Revenue Service for the years ended December 31, 2018 through 2020. The 2021 income tax 
returns have not been filed. The years open to examination by state taxing authorities vary by 
jurisdiction; no years prior to 2018 are open. 
 
10. OFF BALANCE SHEET ACTIVIES 
 
Loan Commitments 
 
The Company is party to financial instruments with off-balance sheet risk in the normal course of 
business to meet the financing needs of its customers. These financial instruments include commitments 
to extend credit. The instruments involve, to varying degrees, elements of credit and interest rate risk in 
excess of the amount recognized in the consolidated balance sheets. 
 
The Company’s exposure to credit loss is represented by the contractual amount of those instruments. 
The Company uses the same credit policies in making commitments and conditional obligations as it 
does for on-balance sheet instruments. 
 
The following financial instruments were outstanding whose contract amounts represent credit risk: 

 
 
 

Commitments to extend credit are agreements to lend to a customer provided there is no violation of any 
condition established in the contract. Commitments generally have fixed expiration dates or other 
termination clauses and may require payment of a fee. The commitments for lines-of-credit may expire 
without being drawn upon. Therefore, the total commitment amounts do not necessarily represent future 
cash requirements. The Company evaluates each customer’s creditworthiness on a case-by-case basis. 
The amount of collateral obtained, if deemed necessary by the Company upon extension of credit, is 
based on management’s credit evaluation of the borrower. 
 

2021 2020

Commitments to grant loans  $    71,558  $    98,352 
Unadvanced funds on equity lines-of-credit        69,705        58,271 
Unadvanced funds on other lines-of-credit      103,169        73,533 
Unadvanced funds on construction loans        21,738        12,023 
Performance standby letters of credit          1,652             287 

December 31, 

(In thousands)
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Unadvanced funds on other lines-of-credit consist of unfunded commitments under commercial lines-of-
credit, revolving credit lines and overdraft protection agreements and are commitments for possible 
future extensions of credit to existing customers. These lines-of-credit usually do not contain a specified 
maturity date and may not be drawn upon to the total extent to which the Company is committed. 
 
Standby letters-of-credit are conditional commitments issued by the Company to guarantee the 
performance of a customer to a third party. Those letters-of-credit are primarily issued to support public 
and private borrowing arrangements. Essentially all letters of credit issued have expiration dates within 
one year.  The credit risk involved in issuing letters of credit is essentially the same as that involved in 
extending loan facilities to customers. 
 
11. ON BALANCE SHEET DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS AND HEDGING ACTIVITIES 
 
Derivatives Not Designated as Hedging Instruments 
 
Interest Rate Swaps Related to Commercial Lending Transactions 
 
In 2020, the Company became party to interest rate swap transactions that are not designated as hedging 
instruments. These transactions relate to interest rate swaps that the Company has entered into with 
commercial lending customers to effectively convert their loans from a variable rate to a fixed rate.  
 
Information about interest rate swaps related to commercial lending transactions is as follows as of 
December 31, 2021 and 2020: 

 
  

Notional 
Amount

Balance Sheet 
Location Fair Value

Notional 
Amount

Balance Sheet 
Location Fair Value

As of December 31, 2021

Interest rate swap agreements  $26,813 Other Assets  $      728  $26,813 Other Liabilities  $      728 

As of December 31, 2020

Interest rate swap agreements  $26,366 Other Assets  $      638  $26,366 Other Liabilities  $      638 

Derivative Assets Derivative Liabilities

(in thousands)
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Risk Participation Agreements 
 
The Company has risk participation agreements that obligate the Company to make payments under these 
agreements if the customers default on their obligation to perform under derivative swap contracts with a 
third party. The following a summary of risk participations agreements sold at December 31, 2021 and 
2020.  

 
Based on the internal risk rating process of underlying third parties to swap contacts, the risk participation 
agreement were all pass rated at December 31, 2021 and 2020, which indicates the expected risk of 
default is currently low. Assuming all of the underlying swap counterparties defaulted at December 31, 
2021 and 2020, the exposure from risk participation agreements would be $1,000 and $4,000 based on the 
Company’s obligation for the fair value of the underlying swaps.  
 
As of December 31, 2021 and 2020, the Company has pledged cash collateral to derivative counterparties 
totaling $530,000 and $580,000, respectively. The Company may need to post additional collateral or 
may receive collateral in return in the future in proportion to potential changes in the overall unrealized 
gain/loss position. Cash collateral pledged is restricted as to use.  
 
To reduce credit risk related to the use of derivative instruments, the Company might deem it necessary 
to obtain collateral. The amount and nature of the collateral obtained is based on the Company’s credit 
evaluation of the customer. 
 
Derivative Loan Commitments 
 
Mortgage loan commitments are referred to as derivative loan commitments if the loan that will result 
from exercise of the commitment will be held for sale upon funding.  In 2021, the Company entered into 
commitments to fund residential mortgage loans at specified times in the future, with the intention that 
these loans will subsequently be sold in the secondary market.  A mortgage loan commitment binds the 
Company to lend funds to a potential borrower at a specified interest rate and within a specified period of 
time.  Outstanding derivative loan commitments expose the Company to the risk that the price of the 
loans arising from exercise of the loan commitment might decline from inception of the rate lock to 
funding of the loan due to increases in mortgage interest rates.  If interest rates increase, the value of these 
loan commitments decreases.  Conversely, if interest rates decrease, the value of these loan commitments 
increases.  The notional amount of rate-locked mortgage loan commitments was $53,986,000 at 
December 31, 2021.  The fair value of such commitments at December 31, 2021 was an asset of 
$262,000.    
 

  

2021 2020

Notional amount 720$                          756$                          
Unrealized loss 1$                              4$                              

(In thousands)
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Forward Loan Sale Commitments 
 
To protect against the price risk inherent in derivative loan commitments, in 2021, the Company utilized 
forward loan sale commitments to mitigate the risk of potential decreases in the values of loans held for 
sale and loans that would result from the exercise of the derivative loan commitments.  With a mandatory 
delivery contract, the Company commits to deliver a certain principal amount of mortgage loans to an 
investor at a specified price on or before a specified date.  If the Company fails to deliver the amount of 
mortgages necessary to fulfill the commitment by the specified date, it is obligated to pay a “pair-off” fee, 
based on then-current market prices, to the investor to compensate the investor for the shortfall.  The 
notional amount of forward loan sale commitments was $11,234,000 as of December 31, 2021.  The fair 
value of such commitments was a liability of $54,000 at December 31, 2021. With a best efforts contract, 
the Company commits to deliver a loan at a specified price if the specific loan closes. The notional 
amount of best efforts forward loan sale commitments was $1,103,000 at December 31, 2021. The fair 
value of these commitments was immaterial. 
 
12. LEGAL CONTINGENCIES 
 
Various legal claims arise from time to time in the normal course of business, which, in the opinion of 
management, will have no material effect on the Company’s consolidated financial position.  
 
13. MINIMUM REGULATORY CAPITAL REQUIREMENTS 
 
The Bank is subject to various regulatory capital requirements administered by the federal banking agencies.  
Failure to meet minimum capital requirements can initiate certain mandatory and possibly additional 
discretionary actions by regulators that, if undertaken, could have a direct material effect on the Company’s 
consolidated financial statements. 
 
Under capital adequacy guidelines and the regulatory framework for prompt corrective action, the Bank 
must meet specific capital guidelines that involve quantitative measures of their assets, liabilities and certain 
off-balance-sheet items as calculated under regulatory accounting practices. The capital amounts and 
classification are also subject to qualitative judgments by the regulators about components, risk weightings, 
and other factors. 
 
Federal banking regulations require the Bank to maintain minimum amounts and ratios of total common 
equity Tier 1 capital, Tier 1 capital and total capital to risk weighted assets and Tier 1 capital to average 
assets as set forth in the following table. Additionally, community banking institutions must maintain a 
capital conservation buffer of common equity Tier 1 capital in an amount greater than 2.5% of total risk 
weighted assets to avoid being subject to limitations on capital distributions and discretionary bonuses. 
 
For regulatory capital purposes, loans made under the PPP are risk-weighted at 0% in risk-based capital 
calculations. For the Tier 1 leverage ratio computation, PPP loans pledged to the PPPLF are excluded 
from total average assets. Any PPP loan that is not pledged to the PPPLF is included in total average 
assets for purposes of the Tier 1 leverage ratio calculation.  
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As of December 31, 2021, the most recent notification from the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation 
categorized the Bank as well capitalized under the regulatory framework for prompt corrective action.  To 
be categorized as well capitalized, the Bank must maintain minimum total risk-based, common equity 
Tier 1 risk-based, Tier 1 risk-based, and Tier 1 leverage ratios as set forth in the following table. There 
are no conditions or events since that notification that management believes have changed the Bank’s 
category. 

 
The Bank’s actual capital amounts and ratios and minimum capital requirements are presented in the 
following table and do not differ materially from the Company’s ratios. 
 

 
 
  

Minimum
to be Considered

Minimum Required "Well Capitalized" Under
for Capital Adequacy Prompt Corrective

Actual Purposes Action Provisions
Amount Ratio Amount Ratio Amount Ratio

December 31, 2021:
    Total capital to 142,808$ 13.8% 82,563$     8.0% 103,204$    10.0%
        risk weighted assets
    Common equity Tier 1 capital to 134,551   13.0    46,442       4.5    67,083        6.5        
        risk weighted assets
     Tier 1 capital to 134,551   13.0    61,923       6.0    82,564        8.0        
        risk weighted assets
     Tier 1 capital to 134,551   9.8      54,975       4.0    68,719        5.0        
        average assets
December 31, 2020:
    Total capital to 106,845$ 13.0% 65,650$     8.0% 82,062$      10.0%
        risk weighted assets
    Common equity Tier 1 capital to 99,820     12.2    36,910       4.5    53,314        6.5        
        risk weighted assets
     Tier 1 capital to 99,820     12.2    49,213       6.0    65,617        8.0        
        risk weighted assets
     Tier 1 capital to 99,820     8.2      48,693       4.0    60,866        5.0        
        average assets

(Dollars in thousands)
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14. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
 
Defined Benefit Pension Plan 
 
The Company provides basic and supplemental pension benefits for eligible employees through the 
Savings Banks Employees Retirement Association (“SBERA”) Pension Plan. Each employee reaching 
the age of 21 and having completed at least 1,000 hours of service in the twelve month period from date 
of hire, automatically becomes a participant in the retirement plan. All participants are fully vested after 
three years of service. During 2006, the Company amended the Plan to exclude employees hired on or 
after November 1, 2006 from participation in the Plan. 
 
Information pertaining to the activity in the plan for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020 are as 
follows: 

 
 

Actuarial losses related to the pension benefit obligation in 2021 were primarily a result of salary increases 
greater than the assumed salary scale, offset by an increase in the discount rate.  
 
Actuarial losses related to the pension benefit obligation in 2020 were primarily as a result of a decrease 
in the discount rate and salary increases greater than the assumed salary scale and the interest rates used 
to annuities to lump sum distributions.  

2021 2020

Change in benefit obligation:
  Benefit obligation at beginning of year  $  22,305  $  20,190 
  Service cost           532           406 
  Interest cost           763           823 
  Actuarial loss           332        3,755 
  Benefits paid       (1,051)       (2,869)
  Benefit obligation at end of year      22,881      22,305 

Change in plan assets:
  Fair value of plan assets at beginning of year 18,793     18,556     
  Return on plan assets        2,144        2,106 
  Contributions                -        1,000 
  Benefits paid       (1,051)       (2,869)
  Fair value of plan assets at end of year      19,886      18,793 

Funded status and pension liability at end of year 2,995$     3,512$     

Accumulated benefit obligation at end of year 18,737$   18,291$   

(In thousands)
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The assumptions used to determine the benefit obligation at December 31, 2021 and 2020 are as follows: 
 

 
The components of the net periodic pension cost for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020 are as 
follows: 

 
  

The service cost component of net periodic pension cost is included in salaries and employee benefits 
expense and the remaining components are included in other non-interest expense on the consolidated 
statements of net income.  
 
The assumptions used to determine the net periodic pension cost for the years ended December 31, 2021 
and 2020 are as follows: 

  
 

The expected long term-rate of return is based on prevailing yields on high-quality fixed- income 
investments increased by a premium of 3% to 5% for equity investments. 
 

  

2021 2020

Discount rate 3.75% 3.50%
Rate of compensation increase 3.00% 3.00%

2021 2020

Service cost  $     532  $     406 
Interest cost         763         823 
Expected return on plan assets    (1,463)    (1,419)
Amortization of net actuarial loss         496         347 
Settlement loss             -         713 
          Net periodic pension cost  $     328  $     870 

(In thousands)

2021 2020

Discount rate 3.50% 4.25%
Expected long-term rate of return on plan assets 8.00% 8.00%
Rate of compensation increase 3.00% 3.00%
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The fair values of major categories of the Company’s pension plan assets are summarized below:  
 

 
 

1)  Certain investments that were measured at net asset value per share (or its equivalent) have not been 
classified in the fair value hierarchy. There are no unfunded commitments or redemption restrictions for 
these investments, which can be redeemed on a daily basis. 

  

Total
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Fair Value

Collective funds 2,127$        -$            -$           2,127$    
Equity securities 4,679          -              -             4,679      
Mutual funds 2,813          -              -             2,813      
Total investments measured
   in the fair value hierarchy 9,619$        -$            -$           9,619      
Investments measured at
   net asset value (1) 10,267    
   19,886$  

Total
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Fair Value

Collective funds 1,999$        -$            -$           1,999$    
Equity securities 4,985          -              -             4,985      
Mutual funds 2,337          -              -             2,337      
Total investments measured
   in the fair value hierarchy 9,321$        -$            -$           9,321      
Investments measured at
   net asset value (1) 9,472      
   18,793$  

(In thousands)

December 31, 2021

December 31, 2020

(In thousands)
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The plan assets measured at fair value in Level 1 are based on quoted market prices in an active exchange 
market. The plan assets measured at net asset value are based on the fair value of the underlying 
investments held by the fund less its liabilities.  
 
The following table summarizes investments for which fair value is measured using the net asset value 
per share practical expedient.  

 
SBERA offers a common and collective trust as the underlying investment structure for pension plans 
participating in the Association. The target allocation mix for the common and collective trust portfolio 
calls for an equity-based investment deployment range from 49% to 63% of total portfolio assets. The 
remainder of the portfolio is allocated to fixed income from 28% to 42% and other investments including 
global asset allocation and hedge funds, used for risk management, from 3% to 15%. The Trustees of 
SBERA, through the Investment Committee, select investment managers for the common and collective 
trust portfolio. A professional investment advisory firm is retained by the Investment Committee to 
provide allocation analysis, performance measurement and to assist with manager searches. The overall 
investment objective is to diversify equity investments across a spectrum of investment types to limit risk 
from large market swings. 
 

  

2021 2020

Collective funds by category:
     Equity  $      2,680  $      2,371 
     US debt securities          3,673          3,377 
     International equities          2,918          2,655 

Limited partnerships by category:
     Emerging markets             666             770 
     Multi-strategy               31                 - 

Hedge funds by category:
     Global opportunities               55               66 
     Private investment entities and/or separately
        managed accounts             244             233 

 $    10,267  $      9,472 

December 31,

(In thousands)
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Estimated future benefit payments, which reflect expected future service as appropriate, are as follows: 
 

 
 

401(k) Plan 
 
 

The Company maintains a 401(k) plan for the benefit of its employees. Each employee reaching the age of 
21 and having completed at least 1,000 hours of service in one twelve-month period beginning with such 
employee’s date of employment, or anniversary thereof, becomes eligible to be a participant in the Plan. 
The Plan provides for voluntary contributions by participating employees subject to certain limits based on 
federal tax laws. The Company makes a contribution equal to 3% of the employees’ compensation. 
Effective November 1, 2006, the Plan was amended to add a discretionary matching contribution 
determined by the Company each plan year for employees hired on or after November 1, 2006, not to 
exceed 4% of the employees’ compensation. All contributions are immediately 100% vested. The 
Company’s total contribution for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020 amounted to $666,000 and 
$614,000, respectively. 
 
Incentive Compensation Plan 
 
Management and employees of the Company participate in an incentive compensation plan which is 
based on a percentage of the Company’s return on assets and certain lending and deposit growth goals. 
The plan is subject to annual review by the Executive Committee of the Board of Trustees for 
continuation. Incentive compensation expense for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020 
amounted to $1,678,000 and $1,593,000, respectively. 
 
Supplemental Retirement Agreements 
 
The Company has entered into supplemental employee retirement agreements with certain senior 
officers and Trustees of the Company to provide supplemental retirement benefits. The present value of 
the future benefits payable under these arrangements are being accrued from the commencement of the 
plans over the participants’ remaining periods of service, taking into consideration vesting provisions in 
the agreements. The accrued liability for these agreements is reported in accrued expenses and other 

Years Ending
December 31, Amount

(In thousands)

2022 1,079$         
2023 1,665           
2024 1,240           
2025 1,354           
2026 1,672           

2027-2031 7,693           
Total 14,703$       
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liabilities on the consolidated balance sheets and amounted to $2,036,000 and $1,786,000 at December 
31, 2021 and 2020, respectively. Expense relating to these agreements for the years ended December 
31, 2021 and 2020 amounted to $285,000 and $227,000, respectively. 
 
Endorsement Split-Dollar Life Insurance Arrangements 
 
The Company is the sole owner of life insurance policies pertaining to certain of the Company’s 
executives. The Company has entered into agreements with these executives whereby the Company has 
agreed to maintain a life insurance policy in effect during the executives’ retirement which will pay to 
the executives’ estates or beneficiaries a portion of the death benefit that the Company will receive as 
beneficiary of such policies. The Company recognized related income for these agreements of $169,000 
for the year ended December 31, 2021 and expense of $42,000 for the years ended December 31, 2020.  

 
15. FAIR VALUES OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES 
 
Determination of Fair Value 
 
The Company uses fair value measurements to record fair value adjustments to certain assets and 
liabilities. The fair value of an asset is the price that would be received to sell an asset in an orderly 
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. Fair value is best determined based upon 
quoted market prices. However, in many instances, there are no quoted market prices for the Company’s 
assets. In cases where quoted market prices are not available, fair values are based on estimates using 
present value or other valuation techniques. Those techniques are significantly affected by the assumptions 
used, including the discount rate and estimates of future cash flows. Accordingly, the fair value estimates 
may not be realized in an immediate settlement of the asset. 
 
The following methods and assumptions were used by the Company in estimating fair value disclosures. 
 
Securities  

 
All fair value measurements are obtained from a third party pricing service and are not adjusted by 
management. The securities measured at fair value in Level 1 are based on quoted market prices in an 
active exchange market. Securities measured at fair value in Level 2 are based on pricing models that 
consider standard input factors such as observable market data, benchmark yields, interest rate 
volatilities, broker/dealer quotes, credit spreads and new issue data. 

 
Derivative Assets and Liabilities 
 
Interest Rate Swap Agreements 
 
Interest rate swap agreements are stated at estimated fair value based on their notional amount, 
amortization, tenor, payment frequency, day count fraction, fixed and floating rates, and other factors. 
The present value of expected cash flow differences is calculated based on prevailing market and 
contractual swap rates. The valuation of interest rate swap agreements are reviewed on a frequent basis. 
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These valuations are performed by an independent appraiser consistent with industry practice for the 
valuation of derivatives.  
 
Risk Participation Agreements  
 
The fair value of risk participation agreements is based on the fair value of the interest rate swap 
agreements and the probability of default. Significant increases (decreases) in probability of default 
would result in a significantly higher (lower) fair value measurement.  
 
Derivatives Loan Commitments and Forward loan sale commitments 
 
Fair values for derivatives loan commitments are based on prices currently charged to enter into similar 
agreements, taking into account the probability that the commitment will be exercised.  
 
Assets and Liabilities Measured at Fair Value on a Recurring Basis 
 
Assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis are summarized below: 
 

 
 

 
  

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total Fair Value

Assets
Securities available for sale -$          243,402$  -$          243,402$        
Marketable equity securities 1,009        -            -            1,009              
Interest rate swap agreements -            728           -            728                 
Derivative loan commitments, net -            262           -            262                 

Total assets 1,009$      244,392$  -$          245,401$        

Liabilities
Interest rate swap agreements -$          728$         -$          728$               
Risk participation agreements -            1               -            1                     
Forward loan sale commitments -            54             -            54                   

Total liabilities -$          783$         -$          783$               

(In thousands)

December 31, 2021
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Assets Measured at Fair Value on a Non-recurring Basis 
 
The Company may also be required, from time to time, to measure certain other assets at fair value on a 
nonrecurring basis in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. These adjustments to fair 
value usually result from application of lower-of- cost-or-market accounting or write-downs of individual 
assets. There are no assets or liabilities measured at fair value on a non-recurring basis at December 31, 
2021 or 2020. 
 
16. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS 
 
Management has evaluated subsequent events through March 30, 2022, which is the date the financial 
statements were available to be issued. There were no subsequent events that require adjustment to or 
disclosure in the consolidated financial statements. 

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total Fair Value

Assets
Securities available for sale -$          193,293$  -$          193,293$        
Marketable equity securities 815           -            -            815                 
Interest rate swap agreements -            638           -            638                 

Total assets 815$         193,931$  -$          194,746$        

Liabilities
Interest rate swap agreements -$          638$         -$          638$               
Risk participation agreements -            4               -            4                     

Total liabilities -$          642$         -$          642$               

December 31, 2020

(In thousands)



BankFive, MHC

100%

BankFive Corporation

100%

Fall River Five Cents Savings Bank

d/b/a BankFive

100% 100% 100% 100%

Hills and Mills Securities Corporation North Main Securities Corporation

Fall River Five Cents Savings Bank

(LEI 549300DQNXFDOXANE548)

LEI N/A unless otherwise noted

LEI N/A unless otherwise noted LEI N/A unless otherwise noted LEI N/A unless otherwise noted LEI N/A unless otherwise noted
Taunton River Realty LLC

Fall River, Ma
Incorporated in Massachusetts

Fall River, Ma

Fall River, Ma
Incorporated in Massachusetts

Fall River, Ma
Incorporated in Massachusetts

(LEI 549300Q61S3IBOJITT02)

Fall River, Ma
Incorporated in Massachusetts

Fall River, Ma
Incorporated in Massachusetts

Fall River, Ma
Incorporated in Massachusetts

Form FR Y-6
BankFive, MHC

Fall River, MA 02720
Fiscal Year Ending December 31, 2021

Organizational Chart

Managing Member Managing Member
Fall River Five Cents Savings Bank

Spindle City Realty LLC

Incorporated in Massachusetts



Results: A list of branches for your holding company: BANKFIVE, MHC (3320978) of FALL RIVER, MA.
The data are as of 12/31/2021. Data reflects information that was received and processed through 12/31/2021.

Reconciliation and Verification Steps
1. In the Data Action column of each branch row, enter one or more of the actions specified below
2. If required, enter the date in the Effective Date column

Actions
OK: If the branch information is correct, enter 'OK'  in the Data Action column.
Change: If the branch information is incorrect or incomplete, revise the data, enter 'Change'  in the Data Action column and the date when this information first became valid in the Effective Date column.
Close: If a branch listed was sold or closed, enter 'Close'  in the Data Action column and the sale or closure date in the Effective Date column.
Delete: If a branch listed was never owned by this depository institution, enter 'Delete'  in the Data Action column.
Add: If a reportable branch is missing, insert a row, add the branch data, and enter 'Add'  in the Data Action column and the opening or acquisition date in the Effective Date column.

If printing this list, you may need to adjust your page setup in MS Excel. Try using landscape orientation, page scaling, and/or legal sized paper.

Submission Procedure
When you are finished, send a saved copy to your FRB contact.  See the detailed instructions on this site for more information.
If you are e-mailing this to your FRB contact, put your institution name, city and state in the subject line of the e-mail.

Note:
To satisfy the FR Y-10 reporting requirements, you must also submit FR Y-10 Domestic Branch Schedules for each branch with a Data Action of Change, Close, Delete, or Add.
The FR Y-10 report may be submitted in a hardcopy format or via the FR Y-10 Online application - https://y10online.federalreserve.gov.

* FDIC UNINUM, Office Number, and ID_RSSD columns are for reference only.  Verification of these values is not required.

Data Action Effective Date Branch Service Type Branch ID_RSSD* Popular Name Street Address City State Zip Code County Country FDIC UNINUM* Office Number* Head Office
Head Office 
ID_RSSD* Comments

Ok Full Service (Head Office) 833404 FALL RIVER FIVE CENTS SAVINGS BANK                                                                                      79 NORTH MAIN STREET                                                                                FALL RIVER               MA 02720     BRISTOL                                 UNITED STATES                           Not Required Not Required FALL RIVER FIVE CENTS SAVINGS BANK                                                                                      833404
Ok Full Service 2753609 DARTMOUTH BRANCH                                                                                                        136 FAUNCE CORNER ROAD                                                                              DARTMOUTH                MA 02747     BRISTOL                                 UNITED STATES                           Not Required Not Required FALL RIVER FIVE CENTS SAVINGS BANK                                                                                      833404
Ok Full Service 3782549 FAIRHAVEN BRANCH                                                                                                        105 HUTTLESTON AVENUE                                                                               FAIRHAVEN                MA 02719     BRISTOL                                 UNITED STATES                           Not Required Not Required FALL RIVER FIVE CENTS SAVINGS BANK                                                                                      833404
Ok Full Service 3782521 EXPRESS BRANCH                                                                                                          55 THIRTEENTH STREET                                                                                FALL RIVER               MA 02720     BRISTOL                                 UNITED STATES                           Not Required Not Required FALL RIVER FIVE CENTS SAVINGS BANK                                                                                      833404
Ok Full Service 204509 MAIN STREET BRANCH                                                                                                      1501 SOUTH MAIN STREET                                                                              FALL RIVER               MA 02724     BRISTOL                                 UNITED STATES                           Not Required Not Required FALL RIVER FIVE CENTS SAVINGS BANK                                                                                      833404
Ok Full Service 205403 NORTH BRANCH                                                                                                            4171 NORTH MAIN STREET                                                                              FALL RIVER               MA 02720     BRISTOL                                 UNITED STATES                           Not Required Not Required FALL RIVER FIVE CENTS SAVINGS BANK                                                                                      833404
Ok Full Service 187107 PLEASANT STREET BRANCH                                                                                                  1301 PLEASANT STREET                                                                                FALL RIVER               MA 02723     BRISTOL                                 UNITED STATES                           Not Required Not Required FALL RIVER FIVE CENTS SAVINGS BANK                                                                                      833404
Ok Full Service 802709 PRESIDENT AVENUE BRANCH                                                                                                 1604 PRESIDENT AVENUE                                                                               FALL RIVER               MA 02720     BRISTOL                                 UNITED STATES                           Not Required Not Required FALL RIVER FIVE CENTS SAVINGS BANK                                                                                      833404
Ok Full Service 230508 COUNTY STREET BRANCH                                                                                                    160 COUNTY STREET                                                                                   NEW BEDFORD              MA 02740     BRISTOL                                 UNITED STATES                           Not Required Not Required FALL RIVER FIVE CENTS SAVINGS BANK                                                                                      833404
Ok Full Service 1160228 NEW BEDFORD BRANCH                                                                                                      1724 ACUSHNET AVE                                                                                   NEW BEDFORD              MA 02746     BRISTOL                                 UNITED STATES                           Not Required Not Required FALL RIVER FIVE CENTS SAVINGS BANK                                                                                      833404
Ok Full Service 1357756 SOMERSET BRANCH                                                                                                         54 COUNTY STREET                                                                                    SOMERSET                 MA 02726     BRISTOL                                 UNITED STATES                           Not Required Not Required FALL RIVER FIVE CENTS SAVINGS BANK                                                                                      833404
Ok Full Service 204901 SWANSEA BRANCH                                                                                                          497 MILFORD ROAD                                                                                    SWANSEA                  MA 02777     BRISTOL                                 UNITED STATES                           Not Required Not Required FALL RIVER FIVE CENTS SAVINGS BANK                                                                                      833404
Ok Full Service 4840820 BRISTOL BRANCH                                                                                                          590 METACOM AVENUE                                                                                  BRISTOL                  RI 02809     BRISTOL                                 UNITED STATES                           Not Required Not Required FALL RIVER FIVE CENTS SAVINGS BANK                                                                                      833404
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Form FR Y-6
BankFive Corporation
Fall River, MA
Fiscal Year Ending December 31, 2021

Report Item 4 (Insiders):
Names & Addresses Principal Occupation Title & Position Title and Position Title & Position Percentage of Percentage of List names of Other Companies
(City and State) if other than Bank with Bank Holding with Subsidiaries* with Other Voting Shares in Voting Shares in (Including Partnerships) if 25% or more

Holding Company Company Businesses Bank H.C. Subsidiaries voting securities are held. Name & %

Anne P. Tangen n/a Trustee, President & CEO Director, President & CEO - 1 n/a n/a n/a n/a
Dartmouth, MA

Robert F. Collins n/a Executive Vice President EVP -1 n/a n/a n/a n/a
Fall River, MA

Catherine A. Dillon n/a Executive Vice President EVP -1 n/a n/a n/a n/a
Marshfield, MA

Patrick J. Deady n/a Senior Vice President SVP - 1 n/a n/a n/a n/a
North Kingston, RI

Jennifer Dooling n/a Senior Vice President SVP - 1 n/a n/a n/a n/a
Marston Mills, MA

Gregory J. Medeiros n/a Senior Vice President SVP - 1 n/a n/a n/a n/a
Dighton, MA

Paul S. Medeiros n/a Senior Vice President SVP - 1 n/a n/a n/a n/a
Bristol, RI

Jennifer D. St. Pierre n/a
Senior Vice President, CFO 
& Treasurer SVP - 1 n/a n/a n/a n/a

Dartmouth, MA

Maria L. Urdi n/a Senior Vice President SVP - 1 n/a n/a n/a n/a
North Easton, MA

Maureen Terranova n/a Senior Vice President SVP - 1 n/a n/a n/a n/a
Jamestown, RI

William Beauchene n/a Senior Vice President SVP - 1 n/a n/a n/a n/a
Lincoln, RI

Lynn Motta n/a Senior Vice President SVP - 1 n/a n/a n/a n/a
Dartmouth, MA

Jimmy Costa n/a Senior Vice President SVP - 1 n/a n/a n/a n/a
Dartmouth, MA

Charles DeSimone n/a Senior Vice President SVP - 1 n/a n/a n/a n/a
Dennis, MA

Christopher Craig n/a First Vice President FVP - 1 n/a n/a n/a n/a
Attleboro, MA

Jeff Sanson n/a First Vice President FVP - 1 n/a n/a n/a n/a
Taunton, MA

Greg Cambio n/a First Vice President FVP - 1 n/a n/a n/a n/a
Johnston, RI

Richard Lafrance Restauranteur Trustee, Chairman Director - 1 President n/a n/a Lafrance Hospitality Company - 80%
Westport, MA Lafrance Enterprises & Lafrance Bros. Inc. - 60%

Lafrance Hospitality Corp. Bittersweet Restaurant, Inc. - 90%
Dartmouth Hospitality Co. - 80%
Westport Hampton - 100%
Marriott Fairfield
Merrill's on the Waterfront
Rachel's - 30%

Peter C. Bogle Retired Trustee, Clerk Director - 1 n/a n/a n/a Ruth C. Bogle Irrevocable Trust - 1989 (land trust) - 100%
Dartmouth, MA

William H. Lapointe Insurance Agent Trustee Director - 1 President n/a n/a Herman W. Lapointe, Jr. Insurance Agency Inc. - 50%
Bristol, RI Lapointe Insurance Agency Lapointe Insurance Services, Inc. - 50%
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Form FR Y-6
BankFive Corporation
Fall River, MA
Fiscal Year Ending December 31, 2021

Report Item 4 (Insiders):
Names & Addresses Principal Occupation Title & Position Title and Position Title & Position Percentage of Percentage of List names of Other Companies
(City and State) if other than Bank with Bank Holding with Subsidiaries* with Other Voting Shares in Voting Shares in (Including Partnerships) if 25% or more

Holding Company Company Businesses Bank H.C. Subsidiaries voting securities are held. Name & %

Edward G. Siegal Certified Public Accountant Trustee Director - 1 President n/a n/a GE Supply, LLC - 25%
Dartmouth, MA GE Supply, LLC FS Supply

Westport CD Realty LLC, So Main Plaza LLC, ACH LLC

Sumner J. Waring, III Funeral Director Trustee Director - 1 Chief Operating Officer n/a n/a n/a
Fall River, MA Service Corporation International

M. Helena Amaral Certified Public Accountant Trustee Director - 1 Partner n/a n/a Kane & Kane Inc.
New Bedford, MA Kane & Kane Inc.

Peter T. Kavanaugh President Trustee Director - 1 President n/a n/a Brownell Boat Stands, Inc.- 100%
Dartmouth, MA Brownell Boat Stands, Inc. Kavanaugh Development - 100%

Kavanaugh Green Energy -100%

Jeffrey J. Reilly Chiropractor Trustee Director - 1 Jeffrey J Reilly, D.C. n/a n/a Jeffrey J Reilly, D.C. - 100%
Fall River, MA

Raymond S. DeLeo Property Management Trustee Director - 1 President n/a n/a Gooding Realty Corp. 100%
Bristol, RI Gooding Realty Corp.

Karl D. Hetzler Manufacturing Trustee Director - 1 President n/a n/a H&S Tool and Engineering - 50%
Fall River, MA H&S Tool and Engineering

Lisa Graham Certified Public Accountant Trustee Director - 1 Partner n/a n/a Norman, Graham & DiGangi
Swansea, MA Norman & Graham PCA

Michelle Pelletier Real Estate Broker Trustee Director - 1 Commercial Real Estate Developer/Broker n/a n/a Jefferson Realty, LLC - 100%
Fall River, MA Jefferson Realty, LLC Jefferson Realty Leasing and Sales LLC - 100%

Alperts Storage LLC - 100%
Davol Street LLC - 100%

  *1 Is Fall River Five Cents Savings Bank d/b/a as BankFive.


	2021 FR Y-6 Cover Letter
	2021 FR Y-6 Report - V1
	FR Y-6 Report Items 2021
	Item 1 Bank Five Financial Statements 2021 FINAL
	1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
	Basis of Presentation and Consolidation
	Nature of Operations
	Use of Estimates
	Fair Value Hierarchy
	Reclassification
	Risks and Uncertainties
	Cash and Cash Equivalents
	Restricted Cash
	The Company maintains cash collateral balances which have been pledged to derivative counterparties and are legally restricted as to use.
	Securities
	Loans Held for Sale
	Loans
	Allowance for Loan Losses
	Derivative Financial Instruments Not Designated as Hedging Instruments
	Loan Level Interest Rate Swaps
	Restricted Stock
	Premises and Equipment
	Goodwill
	Bank-owned Life Insurance
	Foreclosed Real Estate
	Transfers of Financial Assets
	Defined Benefit Pension Plan
	Advertising
	Income Taxes
	Comprehensive Income/Loss
	Recent Accounting Pronouncements

	2. RESTRICTIONS ON CASH AND DUE FROM BANKS
	3. SECURITIES
	4. LOANS
	5. LOAN SERVICING
	6. PREMISES AND EQUIPMENT
	7. DEPOSITS
	8. BORROWED FUNDS
	9. INCOME TAXES
	10. OFF BALANCE SHEET ACTIVIES
	11. ON BALANCE SHEET DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS AND HEDGING ACTIVITIES
	12. LEGAL CONTINGENCIES
	13. MINIMUM REGULATORY CAPITAL REQUIREMENTS
	14. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
	Defined Benefit Pension Plan
	401(k) Plan
	Incentive Compensation Plan
	Supplemental Retirement Agreements
	Endorsement Split-Dollar Life Insurance Arrangements

	15. FAIR VALUES OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
	16. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

	Item 2a FRY6 12_31_21 Organization Chart
	Sheet1

	Item 2b BranchesForID3320978
	BranchesForID3320978

	Item 4 BankFive Corp FRY6 Insiders 2021 DRAFT
	Sheet1




